Public Document Pack

Procurement Board
Dear Member,
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows
for the transaction of the business indicated.
Tom Stannard
Chief Executive
DATE:

Wednesday, 11 May 2022

TIME:

10.00 am

VENUE:

Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record
this meeting.
AGENDA
FACE TO FACE PUBLIC MEETINGS AT THE SALFORD SUITE ADVICE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC (UPDATED 01.03.22)

(Pages 1 - 4)

1

Apologies for absence

2

Declarations of interest

3

To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held
on 20th April 2022

4

Matters arising

5

Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public)

5a

An approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award
a contract for Commissioning of Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis (PrEP)
medication to prevent transmission of HIV for high risk populations
(Muna Abdel Aziz/ Helen Dugdale)

(Pages 11 - 18)

5b

Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award an extension to
the commissioning of the Sexual and Reproductive Health Services
for Salford and Bolton (Helen Dugdale/ Gillian Mclauchlan)

(Pages 19 - 30)

5c

Request to award - Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme Additional Battery Schemes (Hayley Nixon)

(Pages 31 - 40)

5d

Approval to go out to competition for Junction of New Bailey Street
and Chapel Street Growth Deal 2 Scheme (Part 1) (Simon Telford)

(Pages 41 - 48)

(Pages 5 - 10)

5e

St Andrew's CE Primary - Roofing Works phase 2 - Part 1 (Tracy
Squirrell/ Ian Murray)

(Pages 49 - 54)

5f

Lewis Street Primary School - Roof works and window replacements Part 1 (Tracy Squirrell/ George Rogers)

(Pages 55 - 60)

5g

RSAP Modular Properties (Konrad Magdzinkski)

(Pages 61 - 68)

6

Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public)

7

Exclusion of the public

8

Decision items - Part 2 (closed to the public)

8a

Re-tender of the 0-19 procurement options paper (Steve Gavin/
Debbie Blackburn)

9

Date and time of next meeting

(Pages 69 - 88)

10:00am on Wednesday 25th May 2022 in the Salford Suite at the
Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA.

Contact Officer:
Chris Howl, Democratic Services Officer

Tel No:
E-Mail:

chris.howl@salford.gov.uk

Agenda Annex
Face to face public meetings in The Salford Suite at the Civic
Centre
Face to face public meetings have been held in The Salford Suite in the Old Town
Hall Building at the Civic Centre from Wednesday 1st September 2021.
The Salford Suite is the only available room that is large enough to hold meetings in
line with Covid safe guidelines, as advised by Public Health. Your safety is our
upmost priority, whilst also supporting transparency, accountability and effective
decision making.
This briefing note outlines the arrangements in place and the guidelines that we
request that all attendees at our meetings are asked to follow to and keep everyone
as safe as possible while infection rates remain high.
1. General guidelines for meetings
a. We are holding most public decision making meetings in the Salford Suite but it is
not possible at this time to hold the meetings of the Council, Licensing and
Safety Regulatory Panel (taxis) and Planning and Transportation
Regulatory Panel, due to the number of people required to attend and so they
will remain at 100 Embankment for the foreseeable future. There may also be
times, when the date and times of meetings clash, that one may need to move to
100 Embankment.
2. Using the Salford Suite for face to face meetings
There are also construction works be carried out in the Civic Centre so it is very
important, for everyone’s safety, that you only visit the Salford Suite when attending
meetings.
a. Where to enter the building
You must enter the building by the main front door of the Old Town Hall building.
You will need to be let into the building as a pass is required so an officer from
Democratic Services should be on hand to direct you safely to The Salford Suite.
For evening meetings, if you cannot get access via the main front door please
walk around to the main Reception and press the out of hours buzzer to gain
access.

Last updated 01.03.22

Page 1

b. Areas of the building that are closed to people attending meetings
• Extensive rebuilding renovations are taking place in the Civic Centre so
access to rooms and space is very limited. Most of the building will remain
closed and many contractors will be working on site.
• Other members of the public are also using the building to access the
Registrars offices and the ceremony rooms and arrangements are in place for
them to do so safely and to help us manage the numbers of people in the
building so access is restricted to the Registrars corridor and the
ceremony room’s corridor during the day.
c. Toilets
• The toilets on the first floor on the committee room corridor must be used.
The Registrars corridor will not be open to members, officers and members of
the public attending meetings in The Salford Suite during the day.
• The accessible toilet can be used on the Registrars corridor if required and an
officer from Democratic services will act as a marshal on the corridor so
members can use it. Please alert the clerk in attendance at the meeting on
the day.
3. Guidance for attending the meetings in a COVID-safe manner
a. Testing for meetings
• Testing guidance in England has changed. Most people without COVID-19
symptoms do not need to get lateral flow tests, if you have been in contact
with someone who has COVID-19 or who has displayed symptoms and you
suspect they may have COVID-19, it is requested that you take a lateral
flow test before attending.
• In line with current Government guidance, if you have symptoms of COVID19 you are advised get a PCR test as soon as possible if you have any of
these symptoms, even if mild:
o a high temperature
o a new, continuous cough
o a loss or change to your sense of smell or taste
• In line with current Government guidance, if you have symptoms of COVID19, you should stay at home and avoid contact with other people. Get advice
about staying at home and avoiding contact with others
•

Despite all the COVID-secure measures we have put in place there remains a
residual risk and coronavirus can make anyone seriously ill. For some of you
the risk is higher, particularly if you are clinically extremely vulnerable or if
they are at significant risk or you have one or more health conditions as a
number of risk factors may interact as well as health conditions.

• You may wish to take medical advice about your particular circumstances, if
either of the above applies to you before you make a decision about attending
face to face meetings.
b. Attending the meeting on the day in The Salford Suite
• Please arrive for the meeting giving yourself plenty of time of the meeting to
allow for controlled access to the building and meeting space.

Last updated 01.03.22

Page 2

•

•

The meeting will be run in line with Public Health guidance, and using the
principle of ‘hands, face, space and fresh air’. You are requested to regularly
wash and sanitise your hands and wear a face covering whilst attending
meetings.
Movement around the meeting spaces will be kept to an absolute minimum
with pre-defined entrances and exits and restricted areas, as outlined above.

4. Meetings continuing at 100 Embankment
a. Testing for meetings
The advice listed under 3a above also applies at 100 Embankment.
b. Travelling to 100 Embankment
• There are a range of travel options to 100 Embankment, and full details can
be found at this link: https://embankmentmanchester.com/transport-options.
• It is a 4 minute walk from Manchester Victoria train and tram stations
• The Free Bus stops outside both Salford Central Station and 100
Embankment
• There is secure cycle storage and showers on site.
c. Parking at 100 Embankment
• There is onsite parking in the underground QPark (Deansgate North)
immediately below the building. Discounts are available for parking booked in
advance (https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgatenorth/). Cleminson Street remains the closest Salford City Council parking.
• Taxi drop off is available immediately to the front door of the building.

Last updated 01.03.22

Page 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
Procurement Board meeting held in the Civic Centre, Chorley Road,
Swinton, M27 5DA
Wednesday, 20th April 2022
Meeting commenced at 10:15am
Meeting ended at 10:44am
Present in Person
Councillors Hinds (in the Chair) and Merry.
In Attendance in Person
Christine Wood
Democratic Services
In Attendance via MS Teams
Emily Edwards
Senior Integrated Commissioning Manager
Chris Hesketh
Head of Financial Management
Anthony Hilton
Head of Strategic Procurement
Peter Locke
Public Health Strategic Manager
Majid Maqbool
Energy Manager
Hayley Nixon
Commercial Project Manager
Tony Thompstone
Strategic Finance Manager
1. Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of City Mayor Paul Dennett,
Councillor Kelly and Councillor Youd.
2. Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.
3. Minutes of Proceedings
The minutes of the meeting held on 13th April 2022 were approved as a correct
record.
4. Matters Arising
There were no matters arising.
5. Decision Items – Part 1 – Open to the Public
5(a) Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing orders to:
1. Award a contract for Council funded targeted CAMHS (Child and
Adolescent Mental Health Services) to Manchester University NHS
Foundation Trust (MFT) for 12 months from 1 st April 2022 to 31st March
2023; and
2. To complete to integrate MFT CAMHS contracts and children’s mental
health budgets with Salford CCG and to facilitate alignment with new GM
Integrated Care System contracts.
Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director of People Services
requesting Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to:

Page 5

1. Award a contract for Council funded targeted CAMHS (Child and Adolescent
Mental Health Services) to Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust (MFT)
for 12 months from 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023, and
2. To complete work to integrate MFT CAMHS contracts and children’s mental
health budgets with Salford CCG and to facilitate alignment with new GM
Integrated Care System contracts.
The Board was reminded that the previous exception period had been granted to
enable the integration of the Council funded targeted CAMHS contracts with Salford
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) for the provision of these services. The ambition
to integrate CCG and Council budgets and contracts for Children’s and Young
People’s Mental Health services had been agreed a number of years previously and
the Council had acted as both Executive Lead and Commissioner for the children’s
mental health (‘Thrive’) programme for the previous 4 years, supported by the
appointment of an Integrated Senior Commissioning Manager for Children’s and
Young People’s Mental Health in April 2018.
It was reported that the integration of Children’s and Young People’s Mental health
budgets and contracts had been significantly hindered due to COVID and the formal
proposals that were first made to MFT in December 2019 for a new integrated contract
could not be progressed due to NHS England requirements to pay NHS providers on
a block contract basis to ensure guaranteed financial flow to providers to achieve
business continuity and service delivery (accessibility) with minimal requirement for
routine performance and monitoring information. The 2019 proposal had set out a plan
to integrate all Salford CCG and Council funded contracts with MFT into a single block
contract arrangement, with an element of incentive to undertake additional
transformation work and system leadership.
It was further reported that this work has been further delayed with the forthcoming
changes announced in the Health and Social Care Bill (2021), and planned transition
from 10 GM CCGs to a single Greater Manchester Integrated Commissioning Board
(ICB) due to take effect from 1 st July 2022.
Whilst it was not yet entirely clear what this would mean for Salford CAMHS contracts,
it was understood that the plans under the GM ICB arrangements would be to establish
a single contract with each NHS/ NHS commissioned provider. The transition would
require a transition from multiple individual or joint CCG contracts which would be
achieved wherever possible via a process of ‘lift and shift’ into one contract per
provider.
The main MFT CAMHS contract sat with Manchester Health and Care Commissioning
(CCG), with Salford CCG as an ‘Associate Commissioner’. It was initially envisaged
that Salford City Council would also be made an Associate Commissioner in order to
facilitate the integration of Council contracts with Salford CCG, but the plan for transfer
of MFT contracts under ICB arrangements was yet to be agreed. It was anticipated
that there would be one contract for MFT (which will include CAMHS) to cover
Manchester, Salford and now Trafford, who had re-commissioned and transferred their
CAMHS contracts to MFT from PCFT. Further time was therefore required to allow for
this contract transfer work to be completed before July 2022.

Page 6

The significant proportion of funding into MFT Salford CAMHS was from Salford CCG
as was detailed in table 2 of the report, with Salford City Council contributing only a
comparatively small amount. Until March 2022, the three main Council funded
contracts were for the targeted services, as detailed in the report at an annual value
of £308,871. Two of these were jointly funded with CCG and were therefore not
standalone services (Emerge and Starlac). All Council and CCG CAMHS contracts
were recurrently funded and budgets were now included within the Integrated Fund/
Pooled budget from April 2022.
The Board was reminded that Salford CAMHS had signed a Social Value Pledge some
years ago. Social Value benefits of the contract/ scheme were outlined within the
report.
It was confirmed that as Salford was already involved with MFT and that they would
be creating a relationship with the council as an associate (which was already in place
with the CCG), that concerns about current delivery of services and their future
delivery would be suitably managed. Furthermore, of all the services, presently, this
was the least at risk of cuts and there was confidence that CAMHS would be protected.
It was highlighted that the Council’s funding would go towards:
 Emerge - which is a 17-year-old service (£75,000)
 Youth Justice Service (£43,871)
 STARLAC - CAMHS for cared for children (£190,000)
There would also be £70,000 going towards the Route 29 Service which had now
been approved for recurrent funding.
It was confirmed that whilst there had not been a contract review of social value in
the previous two years, in view of its importance to the council, a review would be
picked up.
RESOLVED, THAT: The Procurement Board:
1. Award a contract for Council funded targeted CAMHS (Child and Adolescent
Mental Health Services) to Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust (MFT)
for 12 months from 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023; and
2. To complete work to integrate MFT CAMHS contracts and children’s mental
health budgets with Salford CCG and to facilitate alignment with new GM
Integrated Care System contracts.
5(b) Request for approval to go out to competition through existing
Frameworks for contractors to design and install up to 4 Air Source Heat
Pump systems as part of the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme 3.
Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director for the Place Directorate
requesting approval going out to tender through a Framework for the design and
build of 4 Air Source Heat Pump systems as part of the Public Sector
Decarbonisation Procedure Rules.
The Board was advised that the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme 3 funding
consortium bid, led by the GMCA and where Salford City Council was a partner, had

Page 7

been approved by Salix and an award has been made to GMCA of £19m. The total
project value for Salford City Council was £747,467 to install Air Source Heat Pumps
at 4 sites, this would be a grant of £331,979 and match funding of £415,488.
The proposed sites were as listed below and would be part of its contribution
towards Greater Manchester’s target of becoming a carbon-neutral city region by
2038:
 Beesley Green
 Boothtown Library
 Turnpike Mess room
 Waterside Activity Centre
The Board was further advised that the project would run from 1 st April 2022- 31st
March 2023.
RESOLVED, THAT: The Procurement Board approve going out to tender through a
Framework for the design and build of 4 Air Source Heat Pump systems as part of
the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme 3 which is to be procured in accordance
with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules.
6(a) LATE ITEM – Approval to award the Contract for Merchant acquiring
(enables the Council to accept credit and debit card payments)
Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director of Service Reform
requesting that the Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for
Merchant acquiring (enables the Council to accept credit and debit card payments).
The Board was advised that in order to accept payments from bill payers via debit
and credit cards the Council required a merchant acquirer, that processes card
payments and passed the payments to the Council.
The Board was further advised that there was a facility within the Council’s bank
contract that permitted the Council to access merchant acquiring services using the
direct award process and terms of the Crown Commercial Services Framework
RM6118 - Payment Acceptance.
It was reported that the Council’s income management system provider was
changing their gateway provider, as part to this change the Council must obtain new
merchant IDs as soon as possible to enable the change to be made by the 31
October 2022, this had communicated at a meeting on the 13 th April. As part of the
process the income management system provider was freezing all other
development and a delay in getting a decision on the change in merchant provider
could lead to the Council being unable to process card payments after that date. To
mitigate this occurring the Council would need to continue with its existing supplier
paying the higher fees.
It was further reported that the Council would need to work with its existing merchant
provider until the changeover in October 2022 if the income management system
provider freeze on development includes changes of MIDs in the interim.

Page 8

As part of the due diligence of checking that the Council was receiving the most
competitive rates available through the CCS framework, the user guidance had
followed which required the Council to undertake a desktop evaluation of the three
providers on the framework.
Contact had been made with CCS who provided pricing spreadsheets for the 3
suppliers on the framework. After entering the Council’s card processing volumes
and values, the estimated costs for 12 months of the 3 providers had been
compared.
£
Supplier 1
Supplier 2
Global pay

103,446
94,190
79,794

These represent a saving of approx. £39k per annum against the current contract
cost of £119,165 (excludes chip and pin costs).
The contract would be for 3 years with 2 options to extend for a further 12 months to
be approved by Strategic Director – Service Reform.
The start date of the contract would need to be determined following consultation
with the Council’s supplier of its income management software as some
configuration work would be required to use the new merchant provider. When a
commencement date for the switch over had been confirmed, there would be a 4week lead in period and the cost of the switch would be £5k, however this cost would
be recouped in the first months of the new contract.
The following legal implications had been received since publication of the agenda
and reports:
“When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. The proposed award of
the contract follows an exercise to call off following competition in accordance with an
appropriate Crown Commercial Services (CCS) Framework.
CSO’s stipulate that where a suitable framework exists, this must be used unless there
is an auditable reason not to do so. The proposed award of the contract follows a call
off exercise in accordance with the CCS framework referred to in the body of the
report, which is a fully compliant framework from a legislative perspective available for
the Council (and other local authorities) to use.
The Council can comply with the requirements of PCR by carrying out its own
procurement exercise or relying upon another contracting authority's compliant
procurement exercise. In that regard, contracting authorities may procure goods,
works or services through a ‘central purchasing body’ (and are deemed to have
complied with PCR to the extent that the central purchasing body has). The definition
of ‘central purchasing body’ includes an authority that concludes framework

Page 9

agreements for works, goods or services intended for one or more contracting
authorities.
In this instance three submissions were invited and received from tenderers on the
framework, which were evaluated in line with the published criteria resulting in the
proposed award of the contract to Global Pay. The procurement procedures therefore
appear robust and compliant with the requirements of the Council’s CSO’s and public
procurement legislation”.
In relation to Social Value, the Board was advised that the contract was for the
processing of card payments, whilst the volume and value of the card transactions
was high, the cost of the contract was relatively small.
RESOLVED, THAT: The Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for
Merchant acquiring (enables the Council to accept credit and debit card payments)
to Global Pay as detailed in the report.
7. Any other business – Part 1 – Open to the Public
There was not any other business.
8. Decision Items – Part 2 (Closed – Open to the Public
There were not any Part 2 items.
9. Decision Items – Part 2 – Open to the Public
There were not any Part 2 items.
10.
Date and time of next meeting
10:00am on Wednesday 11 May 2022 in the Salford Suite at the Salford Civic
Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA.

Page 10

Agenda Item 5a
Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF
The Strategic Director for Public Health (Deputy Director of Public Health)
TO
Procurement Board
ON
11th May 2022
TITLE: Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award a
contract for Commissioning of Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis (PrEP) medication to
prevent transmission of HIV for high risk populations.
RECOMMENDATION:
That the Procurement Board approves an exception to Contractual Standing Orders
as permitted within the City Council Constitution for the reason(s) highlighted in the
table below and the award of the Contract for the Commissioning of PrEP medication
as detailed in the table below:

Detail required

Answers

Title/Description of Contracted
Service/Supply/Project

Commissioning of Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis (PrEP)
medication to prevent transmission of HIV for high
risk populations

Name of Successful Contractor

Bolton NHS Foundation Trust

Supplier Registration Number

654913421

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation

Other

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Status of Organisation
Non-SME

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Contract Value

£246,384 for
Salford 20222023

Per Annum (estimated average)

Contract Duration

12 months

Contract Start Date

01/04/2022

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 11

Contract End Date

31/03/2023

Optional Extension Period 1

31/03/2024

Optional Extension Period 2
Who will approve each Extension Period?

Procurement Board (extension > £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number)

Helen Dugdale 0161 793 3543

Lead Service Group

Public Health

Reason for CSO Exception
(select all that apply)

The goods / services / works are only obtainable
from one provider and there is no other provider
available to allow genuine competition
The execution of works or the supply of goods
or services is controlled by a statutory body
Delivers Best Value to the Council
Special education, health or social care
contracts, if it is considered in the Council’s best
interests and to meet the Council’s obligations
under relevant legislation
The execution of works or the supply of goods
and services is required so urgently as not to
permit compliance with the requirements of
competition
Security works where the publication of
documents or details in the tendering process
could prejudice the security of SCC and Salford
residents
Procurements made through, or on behalf of,
any consortium, local authority, statutory or
similar body, provided that tenders or quotations
are invited and contracts placed in accordance
with national or EU legislation.

Funding Source

External Funding Source (please identify below)
Mayor’s Employment Charter
Committed to sign up to the Charter

Ethical Contractor

Accredited Living Wage Employer

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this report is to request an exception to Contractual Standing Orders
to approve the award of a contract for Commissioning Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis from
the existing Sexual Health Services (SHS) Provider, Bolton NHS Foundation Trust.
The Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) are providing Public Health in
Local Authorities with funding in the Public Health grant to commission PrEP, via the
local level 3 Sexual Health Service contract. Salford’s level 3 provider is Bolton NHS
Foundation Trust (BFT). They provide Sexual Health Services for Salford and Bolton.
Salford is the lead commissioner.

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 12

NHS England and Improvement continue to pay for the medication costs for those
taking PrEP.
The funding is to cover the period April 2022 - March 2023. DHSC have stated that
the government is committed to the provision of PrEP going forwards.
Note. A plus one, subject to funding, is being sought, which takes the budget over the
£150,000 Delegated Decision Notice limit.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
1, PrEP Local Authority National Service Specification insert.
2, NHS England Provider contract to pay for the medication only part of the treatment.

KEY DECISION:
No.
For 2022-2023 the value is between £150,000 and £349,999 for Salford City Council.

DETAILS:
What is PrEP?
PrEP (HIV Pre-exposure Prophylaxis) is a medicine for HIV negative people, is taken
before sex, so it is pre-exposure. Prophylaxis means to prevent infection, in this case
HIV. It can reduce the risk of acquiring HIV.
PrEP has been tested nationally over the previous few years via the PrEP IMPACT
trial (See appendix 1).
PrEP forms part of the combination of HIV prevention approaches, alongside health
promotion, condom use, regular testing and swift initiation of HIV treatment where
diagnosed. Active risk reduction provides a major opportunity to control HIV
transmission. In addition, the regular sexually transmitted infection (STI) testing which
forms part of the PrEP offer provides opportunities to test and treat STIs, thereby
supporting the control of STIs.
Should the 1 year SRHS extension be agreed, the expectation is that any future PrEP
budget for 2023-24 will continue to fund PrEP delivery from the level 3 SRHS
commissioned from BFT.
Reason for the exception
PrEP needs to be provided for Salford residents and DHSC guidance has stipulated
this is through a Level 3 sexual health service provider. Bolton NHS Foundation Trust

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 13

(BFT) is the local Level 3 provider for Salford and Bolton local Authorities. BFT
delivered the PrEP IMPACT Trial, which ended in October 2020, so are experienced
in provision. Public demand has increased as eligible people are aware the national
funding has been allocated to provide PrEP to eligible people across England.
Currently PrEP is delivered within the local authority commissioned specialist (level
3) sexual health service by BFT. Commissioning BFT represents the best value way
to provide this currently as they are Salford’s Level 3 service.
NB A level 3 SHS is required because they can provide clinical governance, patient
confidentiality, information governance, safeguarding, workforce training, medicines
management etc.
DHSC has provided funding to Local Authorities for PrEP as part of the Public Health
grant allocation in 2022-2023. DHSC is committed to providing PrEP long term.
15% of the PrEP allocation will be retained in house for Out of Area charges for PrEP,
plus £10,000 for Salford to pay for communications and promotion to ensure take up
in all eligible groups e.g. BAME and trans women in Salford.
Social value
Having access to PrEP empowers residents who are at a high risk of becoming HIV
positive, by giving them an option to take control and reduce their risk by taking PrEP.
BFT consult with Service Users annually and work on the issues raised. BFT employ
staff from Salford and GM which supports employment and the local economy.
KPI’s and Contract Monitoring
The performance monitoring of the contract and KPI’s will form part of the existing
quarterly performance meeting between Salford City Council, Salford CCG and
Bolton Council and BFT Sexual Health Service Leads, for the main Sexual Health
Contract.
KPI’s including the following will be measured:
- Baseline risk assessment.
- PrEP initiation (including education, behavioural support/adherence; baseline
assessment and testing; supplying PrEP).
- Clinical follow-up and monitoring (including continued supplying; assessing
adherence and adverse effects; management of short-term side effects; PrEP:
HIV testing, STI screening, renal monitoring, data collection, indicators for
stopping PrEP).

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
Salford Locality plan 2020-25.

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 14

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:The PrEP provision is targeted at populations who are at high risk of getting HIV only.
Some funding is being retained in house to ensure PrEP uptake in groups who may
not present to the service e.g. BAME and trans women.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:
The risk of not providing a service is that HIV cases will increase, which will have
associated lifetime costs.
A delay could result in high risk individuals being unable to be seen and obtain the
preventative HIV medication, PrEP putting them at risk of becoming HIV positive and
passing it on to others.

SOURCE OF FUNDING:
Department of Health and Social Care paid into the Public Health grant allocation.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:
Tony Hatton the Shared Legal Service. 11.04.2022
When commissioning contracts for the provision of goods, services or the execution
of works, the Council must comply with the provisions of the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s) as set out
in the Constitution, failing which the award of a contract may be subject to legal
challenge.
It is an established principle that an existing public contract is capable of being varied
or modified providing any modification does not affect the overall nature of the
contract, and an exception to the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s) may
be approved by the Procurement Board to allow for contract extensions to be made
where the original contract does not make provision for such an extension of the
original term. There is, however, always a risk that any extension, if done outside of
the usual tender process, or outside of the scope of CSO’s, could be subject to
challenge by an aggrieved provider, on the basis that it ought to have been put out to
tender and advertised in accordance with the Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR).
The risk of challenge increases in tandem with the value and proposed length of the
contract. The extension with the existing providers with proven ability to meet the
requirements of the service users would be argued to be more cost effective and
efficient under the circumstances, in addition to the provision of continuity of support
to the community.

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 15

The PCR also allow for modifications to be made to existing contracts such that a
modification (here a variation) may be made where the following cumulative conditions
are fulfilled:
1 The need for modification has been brought about by circumstances which a diligent
contracting authority could not foresee;
2 The modification does not alter the overall nature of the contract;
3 Any increase in price is not higher than 50% of the value of the original contract or
framework agreement. (reg 72(1)(c)).
Legal Services has advised on varying the existing Bolton Sexual Health Services
contract to include this additional PrEP service and has drafted a deed of a variation
to this effect. The deed sets out the additional contribution (which shall be ring-fenced
for use on PrEP services only, 15% retention for out of area charging, £10,000 for
communications and promotion to high risk lower uptake groups and a specification
setting out the service and how this will be evaluated (against the KPIs as discussed
above). Once agreed with Bolton Council and Bolton Foundation Trust, the deed will
incorporate this PrEP additional commission as set out in this report into the on-going
Bolton Sexual Health Services contract.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by the Finance Team
Michelle Cowley, Finance Manager, 0161 793 2520. 13.04.2022
This project is funded by the Department of Health and Social Care, as a part of the
Public Health Grant.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by
Anthony Hilton, Head of Procurement. 11.04.2022
The PrEP element of this service provision was incorporated into the core Sexual
Health Services (SHS) contract by variation September 2021 and as such ideally
would be captured in one report. Funding has now been confirmed and the service will
continue to be delivered in line with the main core contract.
It is noted that:
Salford City Council are acting as lead commissioner with Bolton Foundation Trust
and is contractually responsible for the contract on behalf of Bolton Council as per the
arrangements set out under the existing contract.

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:
None.

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 16

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Michael Hemingway. 01.04.2022
The NHS is working to mitigate and adapt to the challenges of climate change both
locally and at a national level as set out in “Delivering a ‘Net Zero’ National Health
Service.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
CMT
Adult DMG
Adult Lead Member board

CONTACT OFFICER: Helen Dugdale
TELEPHONE NUMER: 0161 793 3543
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):
Specify the ward(s) affected, if all wards state this fact.
All

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 17

Appendix 1
PrEP IMPACT trial
Previous studies have shown that PrEP can effectively reduce the risk of HIV
infection. Several countries have implemented PrEP programmes to provide the drug
to individuals at high risk of HIV. To plan a PrEP programme in England, NHS
England and Local Authorities needed to know how many people need PrEP, how
many will want to take it and for how long. In order to find this out, they conducted
this research.
26,000 people were recruited to the trial over three years. HIV negative people
attending sexual health clinics in England will have their risk of acquiring HIV
checked by the clinic staff. If the clinic staff consider an individual meet the eligibility
criteria for the trial and are considered to be at high risk, they were offered PrEP.

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 18

Agenda Item 5b
Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF
The Strategic Director for Public Health (Deputy Director of Public Health)
TO
Procurement Board
ON
11th May 2022
TITLE: Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award an
extension to the commissioning of mandated Sexual and Reproductive Health
Services for Salford and Bolton.
RECOMMENDATION:
That the Procurement Board approves an exception to Contractual Standing Orders
as permitted within the City Council Constitution for the reason(s) highlighted in the
table below and the award of the Contract for the Commissioning of the Sexual and
Reproductive Health Services as detailed in the table below:

Detail required

Answers

Title/Description of Contracted
Service/Supply/Project

Commissioning of the Sexual and Reproductive
Health Services

Name of Successful Contractor

Bolton NHS Foundation Trust

Supplier Registration Number

654913421

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation

Other

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Status of Organisation
Non-SME

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Contract Value (£)

£1,794,437 (+ £199,426.40 for PrEP 2022-23) (per
annum estimated average)

Contract Duration

12 months

Contract Start Date

01/04/2023

Contract End Date

31/03/2024

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 19

Detail required

Answers

Optional Extension Period 1
Optional Extension Period 2
Who will approve each Extension
Period?

Procurement Board (extension > £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number)

Helen Dugdale 07970 100066

Lead Service Group

Public Health

Reason for CSO Exception: The goods /
services / works are only obtainable
from one provider and there is no other
provider available to allow genuine
competition

Tick if it applies

Reason for CSO Exception: The
execution of works or the supply of
goods or services is controlled by a
statutory body

Tick if it applies

Reason for CSO Exception: Delivers
Best Value to the Council

Tick if it applies

Reason for CSO Exception: Special
education, health or social care
contracts, if it is considered in the
Council’s best interests and to meet the
Council’s obligations under relevant
legislation?
Reason for CSO Exception: The
execution of works or the supply of
goods and services is required so
urgently as not to permit compliance
with the requirements of competition?

Tick if it applies

Reason for CSO Exception: Security
works where the publication of
documents or details in the tendering
process could prejudice the security of
SCC and Salford residents
Reason for CSO Exception:
Procurements made through, or on
behalf of, any consortium, local
authority, statutory or similar body,
provided that tenders or quotations are
invited and contracts placed in
accordance with national or EU
legislation.

Tick if it applies

Tick if it applies X

Tick if it applies

Funding Source

Revenue Budget

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s
Employment Charter
EC: Committed to sign up to the Charter
EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 20

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this report is to request an exception to Contractual Standing Orders
to approve the award of a contract for the mandated Sexual and Reproductive Health
Services, provided by Bolton NHS Foundation Trust, for Salford and Bolton. The
request relates to an extension for 12 months to the service. This extension is in line
with Bolton Metropolitan Borough Council’s intention and agreed governance to
extend the joint contract with Salford City Council from 1st April 2023 – 31st March
2024.
The current contract ends on the 31/03/2023.
The Sexual Health and Reproductive Services are commissioned to provide clinical
services, information, advice and support on sexual health matters including sexually
transmitted infections (STIs), contraception, relationships and unplanned pregnancy
for adults and young people over 13. The commissioning responsibilities for sexual
health services takes place across Local authorities, Clinical Commissioning groups
and NHS England and services are delivered on different spatial footprints (Salford,
Greater Manchester and National) creating a complex and changing picture of
commissioning and associated provision.
Salford City Council is mandated to commission:
a. comprehensive open-access sexual health services providing contraceptive
services and incentive payments to GPs for Long-Acting Reversible
Contraception (LARC)
b. sexually transmitted infections (STI) testing and treatment, chlamydia
screening and HIV testing through the integrated sexual health service and in
the community or through self-testing
c. through the sexual health contracts and through wider work in Integrated Youth
Services, Vulnerable Young People’s Nursing and others, Salford City Council
also delivers specialist services, including young people’s sexual health,
outreach, HIV prevention and support, psycho-sexual counselling, sexual
health promotion, education and engagement in schools, colleges and other
vulnerable or young people’s settings
In addition, the SRHS provides Pre Exposure Prophylaxis PrEP (HIV Pre-exposure
Prophylaxis) to high risk individuals to prevent HIV infection. The funding for 2022-23
is £199,426.40. It is expected that DH&SC will continue to provide PrEP funding as
part of the PH grant allocation in future years.
The extension for 12 months to the service is required for the following reasons:
1. These are mandated services to help people prevent, identify and treat
sexually transmitted infections, improve sexual health and wellbeing,
manage conditions and adhere to treatment, avoid unwanted pregnancy
and promote safe and positive sex and relationships. Not extending
these contracts would affect the delivery of services and support
including testing and prescribing in clinics

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 21

2. The provider’s resilience and ability to produce high quality bids, as part
of a competitive tender exercise was and is affected by the additional
pressures relating to the COVID-19 global pandemic. This particularly
affects NHS and public sector providers which would include both
potential providers and the existing provider. We could therefore be
subject to a Legal challenge by the existing unsuccessful provider or a
bidder.
3. Market Testing needs to be carried out, to assess and stimulate interest
in tendering for the contract.
4. The extension would provide time to develop a service model and
service specification which accounts for the changing health service
landscape, primary Care’s role and the new additions to SHS such as
PrEP provision. The extension would also provide time to fully
understand and develop the sexual health prevention in the city.
5. It is currently unclear at what level the future sexual health
commissioning that the ICS (CCG and NHS England previously
commissioned services) will be responsible for will be commissioned at,
locality or the Greater Manchester level.
6. Both commissioners and providers are still affected by the COVID-19
pandemic. There is a risk of recommissioning a service of insufficient
quality and carrying out a costly tendering exercise. By not
recommissioning now the existing provider will be able to deliver more
effectively to service users.
7. Any recommissioning action would need to be coordinated with our joint
commissioner, Bolton Council. The extension would allow clarification
regarding SCC’s co-commissioning relationship with or independence
from Bolton Council going forward.
NB. The legal position was clear that beyond 1 st April 2024 a further extension would
not be possible under the current procurement rules.
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
Health and Care Commissioning Board Improving Sexual Health Outcomes Paper.
Gillian McLauchlan. January 2020.
Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award an extension to
the commissioning of the Sexual and Reproductive Health Services for Salford and
Bolton. Previous PB paper SHS extension. 9th December 2020 procurement board.

KEY DECISION:
Yes

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 22

DETAILS:
The main issue for the Procurement Board is agreeing the exception to Contractual
Standing Orders and giving approval to award the Contract. The purpose of this report
is to establish the case for an exception. The request relates to an extension for 12
months to the service. This extension is in line with Bolton Metropolitan Borough
Council intention and agreed governance to extend the joint contract with Salford City
Council from 1st April 2023 – 31st March 2024.
This is required for of the following reasons:
a. These are mandated services to help people prevent, identify and treat
sexually transmitted infections, improve sexual health and wellbeing,
manage conditions and adhere to treatment, avoid unwanted pregnancy
and promote safe and positive sex and relationships. Not extending
these contracts would affect the delivery of services and support
including testing and prescribing in clinics
b. The provider’s resilience and ability to produce high quality bids, as part
of a competitive tender exercise was and is affected by the additional
pressures relating to the COVID-19 global pandemic. This particularly
affects NHS and public sector providers which would include both
potential providers and the existing provider. We could therefore be
subject to a Legal challenge by the existing unsuccessful provider or a
bidder.
c. Market Testing needs to be carried out, to assess and stimulate interest
in tendering for the contract.
d. The extension would provide time to develop a service model and
service specification which accounts for the changing health service
landscape, primary Care’s role and the new additions to SHS such as
PrEP provision. The extension would also provide time to fully
understand and develop the sexual health prevention in the city.
e. It is currently unclear at what level the future sexual health
commissioning that the ICS (CCG and NHS England previously
commissioned services) will be responsible for will be commissioned at,
locality or the Greater Manchester level.
f. Both commissioners and providers are still affected by the COVID-19
pandemic. There is a risk of recommissioning a service of insufficient
quality and carrying out a costly tendering exercise. By not
recommissioning now the existing provider will be able to deliver more
effectively to service users.
g. Any recommissioning action would need to be coordinated with our joint
commissioner, Bolton Council. The extension would allow clarification

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 23

regarding SCC’s co-commissioning relationship with or independence
from Bolton Council going forward.
NB. The legal position was clear that beyond 1 st April 2024 a further extension would
not be possible under the current procurement rules.
Background
Under the Health and Social Care Act 2012, the Local Authority is responsible for the
commissioning of the following Sexual Health Services for our residents:




Sexually Transmitted Infections (STI’s) testing and treatment including
Chlamydia screening and HIV testing.
comprehensive Sexual Health Services which provide contraceptive services
and prescribing costs, excluding GP additionally provided contraception.
specialist services, including young people’s sexual health, teenage pregnancy
services, outreach, HIV prevention, sexual health promotion, services in
schools, college and pharmacies.

The provider delivers:
 Detection and treatment of STIs and HIV and promotion of sexual health
and STI prevention, including chlamydia screening in young people. Timely
detection and treatment is key to reduce spread and potential outbreaks.
 Reduce late diagnosis of HIV and encourage routine testing.
 Reduce unintended conceptions (adults and young people) through
prescribing and promotion of contraception.
 Outreach to sex-on-premises venues.
 Educational outreach, group and 1:1 support in young people’s settings and
professional training provision.
 Tier 3 ‘hub’ located at Goodman Centre/Lanceburn Health Centre.
 Community clinics located across Salford (x5).
Salford City Council provide a budget of £1,794,437 per annum to Bolton NHS
Foundation Trust for the Salford contract.
The Sexual Health needs assessment, with stakeholder and service users was
completed in January 2022. A small Commissioning task and finish group with key
partners will be set up to develop the commissioning strategy for the future sexual
health service, to allow for a system wide future approach. This will include working
up a set of attributes of what a good SRHS delivery model for Salford would look like.
Procurement
An open tender exercise was undertaken with expressions of interest invited through
the Official Journal of the European Union and advertised on The Chest on 14th
October 2015.
The tender exercise was managed through ‘The Chest’ portal with all the relevant
documentation uploaded on to the system for organisations to access.

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 24

Tenderers were permitted to seek clarification of the specification and the questions
asked of them through The Chest ahead of submitting their bids on 4 th December
2015.
Salford City Council received two bids for the tender which were evaluated by a panel
consisting of sexual health commissioners and Public Health Consultants from Salford
City Council and Bolton Metropolitan Borough Council along with Consultants with
backgrounds in sexual and reproductive health and genitourinary medicine.
Performance and Service Development:
Bolton NHS Foundation Trust, the provider performs well, with issues addressed
appropriately. The services are well utilised and maintain standards for appointment
access. The service is well-regarded within patient surveys. The service adapted well
to the changing demands resulting from the Covid-19 Pandemic to keep waiting times
low and continue to meet the needs of patients.
Performance information for 2020 - 2021









Average 1,388 adult patients per month (total 16,662 in 2020-21).
These appointments pre COVID-19 included access to the full range of
contraceptive methods including oral contraceptives and long acting
(IUD, Implant and Depo injections), Emergency Hormonal Contraception,
STI/HIV testing and treatment.
876 annual under 19 attendances.
99.9% of urgent patients were offered an appointment within 48-hours.
99.96% of non-urgent patients were offered an appointment within 2
weeks.
90.3% of booked appointments were seen within 30 minutes.
There were no walk-in clinics due to the COVID-19 restrictions on
capacity.

Education / Outreach
The young people’s service delivers 1:1 and group education and outreach in young
people’s settings. During Quarter 1, Quarter 2 & Quarter 4 Salford Young People
Education and Training offer was put on hold whilst managing school closures. The
team worked on developing new sessions and modes of delivery. During Q3 the
schools were open again and more sessions took place. In 2020 – 2021, mainly within
Q3, 28 sessions were delivered reaching 361 young people in a range of settings. Due
to Covid-19 these sessions were limited this year but include delivery in the following
settings Harrop Fold, Broadwalk PRU, Sale Sharks and Princes Trust.
Note. In 2019-2020 192 sessions were delivered reaching 4097 young people in a
broad range of settings.
PrEP
There were 71 patients on PrEP who had been carried over from the PrEP trial before
January 2021. Between January 2021 and the end of July 2021, when Salford started
offering PrEP through routine commissioning, 88 new patients had started on PrEP,

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 25

the total number of patients on PrEP provided in Salford to the end of July 2021 was
159 patients.
Since the contract was awarded, the service has implemented a number of service
improvements: online booking, full STI screen postal testing kit pilot, open walk-in
access for young people, opt-out scheme for HIV testing (as part of STI screen), HPV
Vaccination for MSM. The service has been recognised as leaders in the PrEP trial
recruitment (HIV prevention). They have also responded well to the COVID -19
pandemic, finding new ways of working in the new situation to keep staff and service
users as safe as possible.
Social Value:
The tender process had a strong focus on a social value approach to the delivery of
future services; social value had a weighting of 10% of the overall score tender
submission score. Bolton NHS Foundation Trust demonstrated a good understanding
of social value and provided practical examples of how they have provided this for
Salford.
Bolton NHS Foundation Trust is committed to social value as described through its 5Year Social Value strategy. It is central to BFT’s work in that they have committed to
ensuring that employment policies, expenditure, and their approaches to working with
partners and environmental plans generates the maximum Social Value. Each of their
six strategic ambitions contain elements on their approach to delivering value to the
community. (For more information see the link: https://www.boltonft.nhs.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2021/07/2021-153-FOI-Requests-Social-Value-Strategy.pdf)
Bolton NHS Foundation Trust are an Accredited Living Wage Employer. BFT are not

signed up to the Mayor’s Employment Charter but are working towards meet the
categories in the pledge which are:




Being an equal and inclusive employer: delivering and supporting workforce
equality
Setting the standard: adopting excellent working practices and conditions
Investing in the local workforce: creating training and employment
opportunities for Salford people.

Reason for the exception
Salford and Bolton both agree on the reasons for the extension.
The coronavirus pandemic has resulted in Public Health and provider services
focussing their resource to the pandemic response. The pandemic was unforeseeable
and has continued to impact on public services and their resilience for a longer period
than could have been anticipated.
The appearance of coronavirus variants in 2021 resulted in an unexpectedly rapid and
significant spread of the virus which required Public Health and provider resource
being allocated to meet the demands of responding to these variants.

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 26

Although resource is now being allocated back to ‘normal’ activity, the timescales
required to tender and implement a service by 1 st April 2023 means that, meaningful
stakeholder engagement and market testing, a thorough revision of contract
specifications would not be achievable. Therefore, this presents a significant risk of a
low-quality tender and contracting a new service which does not effectively meet the
current and future needs of residents.
Extending the contract by a further 12 months to 31st March 2024 will provide the time
to be able to achieve a suitably thorough tender process. The extension would also
provide more time to work up a service model construct that would work for Salford A
new service specification needs to be developed, taking in to account the changing
health service landscape, Primary Care’s role and the new additions to SHS such as
Pre Exposure Prophylaxis (PrEP) provision.
It is currently unclear at what level future sexual health commissioning by the ICS
(CCG and NHS England previously commissioned services) will be responsible for will
be commissioned at, locality or the Greater Manchester level.
Non-NHS providers could have an advantage over NHS providers in their ability to
participate fully within the procurement process, as NHS providers have been
responding to the COVID-19 as well as increased demand which has resulted from
the pandemic. This could in turn affect the quality of their potential tenders and
question the efficacy of any market engagement within this process.
If NHS providers were deemed to be disadvantaged Salford City Council could be
potentially open to a legal challenge about the procurement process from providers
who considered themselves effected in this way.
A procurement process to ensure the continued provision of this mandated service
would need to commence in September 2022 to allow at least two months mobilisation
period for a new provider. A sufficient mobilisation period is required to ensure the
transfer of patient records and the effective TUPE of staff to the new service. It is
considered that there would be insufficient time to prepare and to undertake a tender
exercise to the expected high standards for a 1st April 2023 commencement date and
that this would risk commissioning a service of insufficient quality.
For both commissioner and bidding organisations, participation in a procurement
process is both a labour-intensive and time-consuming process. NHS providers are
currently facing considerable challenge in which operational delivery should be
prioritised.
By not recommissioning now the existing provider will be able to deliver more
effectively to service users.
Therefore, there is an immediate need to secure a decision on the way forward for this
contract to enable continuity of service delivery before the current contract extension
expires on 31st March 2023.
Contract Monitoring and KPI’s

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 27

The performance monitoring of the contract and KPI’s continues to be undertaken at
quarterly performance meetings between Salford City Council, Salford CCG, Bolton
Metropolitan Borough Council and BNFT Sexual Health Service Leads.
KPI’s relate to:
 Detection and treatment of STIs and HIV and promotion of sexual health and
STI prevention. Timely detection and treatment are key to reduce spread and
potential outbreaks.
 Reduce late diagnosis of HIV and encourage routine testing.
 Reduce unintended conceptions (adults and young people) through prescribing
and promotion of contraception.
 Outreach to sex-on-premises venues.
 Educational outreach, group and 1:1 support in young people’s settings and
professional training provision.
 Sexual health aspects of psychosexual counselling.
The Tier 3 ‘hub’ is located at the Goodman Centre/Lanceburn Health Centre, with
Community clinics located across Salford and Bolton. In Salford: Higher Broughton
(Newbury Place), Eccles Gateway Irlam Medical Centre, Walkden Gateway and
Swinton Gateway.
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
Salford Locality Plan 2020-25.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:Equality and Diversity were taken into account during the tendering process. A
Community Impact Assessment was completed during the tendering process and
found no disproportionate negative impact on any protected groups.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:
Medium – these are mandated services to help people prevent, identify and treat
sexually transmitted infections, improve sexual health and wellbeing, manage
conditions and adhere to treatment, avoid unwanted pregnancy and promote safe and
positive sex and relationships. Not extending these contracts would affect, on the
ground delivery of prevention, care and support including testing and prescribing in
clinics.

SOURCE OF FUNDING:
Integrated Fund (Public Health Budget)

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 28

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by the Shared Legal Service 06.04.2022.
When commissioning contracts for the provision of goods, services or the execution
of works, the Council must comply with the provisions of the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 (the Regs) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s) as set
out in the Constitution, failing which the award of a contract may be subject to legal
challenge.
It is an established principle that an existing public contract is capable of being varied
or modified providing any modification does not affect the overall nature of the
contract, and an exception to the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s) may
be approved by the Procurement Board to allow for contract extensions to be made
where the original contract does not make provision for such an extension of the
original term. There is always a risk that any extension could be subject to challenge,
unless it is compliant with the Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR) and the
Council’s CSO’s,
The proposed extension with the existing providers, with proven ability to meet the
requirements of the service users, would be argued to be more cost effective and
efficient under the circumstances, in addition to the provision of continuity of support
to the community.
An additional reason for the request and justification for the extension i s that, in
responding to COVID-19, the Council may enter into contracts without competing or
advertising the requirement so long as they are able to demonstrate that there is
genuine reason for urgency and the events were unforeseeable. Cabinet Office
guideline in respect Regulation 72 of PCR specifically sets out where contracts may
be modified without a new procurement procedure, which applies in respect of this
proposal.
The decision to extend this particular contract was related to the COVID-19 outbreak,
with potential significant impact on service delivery both for providers and
commissioners of these mandated services. Having considered the circumstances in
this matter, commissioners have concluded that the recommendation to extend the
SHS contract with Bolton NHS Trust is considered to be of least risk and of most
benefit to the Council.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Michelle Cowley, Finance Manager
06.04.2022
Funding is available within the Public Health Grant.

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 29

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Christine Flisk, Senior Procurement
Manager, tel. 0161 686 6245.
Date Provided. 07/04/2022.
The reasons for a request to an exception to CSOs are outline within the above report.
Procurement board has authority to approve an exception to extend the current Bolton
Foundation Trust Sexual Health Contract for period 1 st April 2023 to 31st March 2024.
It is noted that Salford City Council are acting as lead commissioner with Bolton
Foundation Trust and is contractually responsible for the contract on behalf of Bolton
Council as per the arrangements set out under the existing contract.

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:
None

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Mike Hemingway 1st April 2022
The NHS is working to mitigate and adapt to the challenges of climate change both
locally and at a national level as set out in “Delivering a ‘Net Zero’ National Health
Service”

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
Adult DMG – 10th February 2022
CMT – 23rd March 2022
Adult Lead Member board – 23rd March 2022
Service and Finance Group – 3rd May 2022

CONTACT OFFICER: Helen Dugdale
TELEPHONE NUMER: 07970 100066
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):
All

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 30

Agenda Item 5c
Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF
The Strategic Director for Place
TO
Procurement Board
ON
11th May 2022

TITLE: Approval to Award the Contract through the Go Neutral Smart Energy
Framework for the design and build of up to 7 battery storage systems as part of the
Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme.

RECOMMENDATION:
Procurement Board to approve the award of the contract to design and build up to 7
battery storage systems as part of the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme to
PolySolar Ltd. This has been procured in accordance with the Council’s Contract
Procedure Rules through the GMCA’s Go Neutral Smart Energy Framework. The
appointment is summarised in the table below:

Detail required
Title/Description of
Contracted
Service/Supply/Project
Name of Successful
Contractors
Status of Organisations

Answers
Design and build of up to 7 battery storage systems
PolySolar Ltd
SME

(to be supplied by Corporate
Procurement)

Contract Value (£)

£924,234

Contract Duration

9 Weeks

Contract Start Date

16/05/2022

Contract End Date

24/07/2022

Optional Extension Period 1

2 months

Optional Extension Period 2

n/a

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 31

Detail required
Who will approve each
Extension Period?
Contact Officer (Name &
number)
Lead Service Group
How the contract was
procured?
(to be supplied by
procurement)
Framework Details (where
applicable)
(procurement body,
framework reference & title,
start/ end date

Answers
Strategic Director (extension < £150k)
Peter Openshaw, Assistant Director Property
Place

Mini Competition through a Framework

Go Neutral Smart Energy Call Off Framework
GMCA
Start date Jan 2022

Funding Source

Grant

Ethical Contractor (EC):
Mayor’s Employment
Charter
EC: Committed to sign up to
charter
EC: Accredited Living Wage
Employer

Framework tender documents issued in October 2021,
included that the GMCA expect our suppliers to be
committed to considering formally adopting the Real Living
Wage as a minimum. This would be confirmed in the contract
award process.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this report is to request approval appoint PolySolar from the Go Neutral
Smart Energy Framework for the delivery of the above mentioned project.
Salford City Council is seeking to install battery storage systems across up to 7 sites
to compliment the Solar PV install and maximise the benefit to Salford City Council in
respect of reducing electricity costs. The proposed sites are as listed at Annex 1 and
will be part of its contribution towards Greater Manchester’s target of becoming a
carbon-neutral city region by 2038.
Salix has agreed, with the GMCA, a change control to extend the delivery of the project
from 30th Sept 21 to 30th June 2022 for those sites that need it. This will allow for
battery storage systems to be installed and eligible for the grant funding which is
£924,234 for the 7 sites. The delivery will complete after the 30 th June but over 90%

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 32

of the costs will be incurred before the end of June. The remainder of the costs will be
met through match funding from the SCC USB Capital budget for the project.
The Procurement Board on 2nd March 2022 approved that the council would seek to
procure this through Lot 1 of the Go Neutral Smart Energy Framework.
Following the procurement process undertaken, this report outlines the successful
contractor and mini competition process followed as per the Framework guidance.
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
- Approval to go out to competition – 2nd March 2022

KEY DECISION: Yes
DETAILS:
1.

Background

The GM 5 Year Environment Plan sets out five key environmental challenges that
threaten the future health and prosperity of our City Region and the vision for
Greater Manchester to be a clean, carbon neutral, climate resilient city region with a
thriving natural environment and circular, zero-waste economy. Following the
publication of the 5 Year Plan Salford CC declared a Climate Emergency, stating its
commitment to the plan and to becoming carbon neutral by 2038. The plan sets out
the urgent actions all of us need to take over the next five years.
Salford City Council was originally looking to install battery storage systems at 9
sites to increase the flexibility of local energy supply as part of its contribution
towards Greater Manchester’s target of becoming a carbon-neutral city region by
2038. The GM 5 Year Environment Plan commits GM to increasing local renewable
energy generation by at least 45 MW by 2024 and councils need to be at the
forefront of this work.
The addition of battery storage will allow for the opportunity to maximise the use of
on-site generation at peak periods rather than exporting any excess energy
generated to the grid, as well as the batteries being able to charge at the cheaper
night tariff and for this stored energy being used on site and therefore reduce the
reliance on grid supply at the higher day rate.
Through the delivery of the project the GMCA has identified spare budget capacity
that could fund further installations and as such asked partners to submit the sites
they could deliver within the extended timeframe to 30th June 2022.
The original sites identified for battery storage consisted of those solar PV sites that
have a day/night tariff for electricity and therefore provide the best opportunity to
maximise additional energy cost savings by storage of any excess PV generation as
well as allowing for load shifting by storage of electricity at the cheaper night rate and
for this to be used during the day. The sites vary in size and nature and have been

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 33

reviewed by the GMCA alongside the eligibility criteria for the funding. The GMCA
has confirmed that the installations are eligible for the grant funding.
2.

The Procurement Process

The approved route to procure by Procurement Board on 2 nd March 2022 was the Go
Neutral Smart Energy Framework that has been procured by the GMCA. This is a
national Framework that is for use by GM authorities. The Framework has four lots
and one specifically for the types of works that we are to commission for battery
storage. Therefore, we ran a mini competition, as per the framework guidance, with
the appointed framework contractors under Lots 1:
Lot 1. Roof Mounted Solar PV & Battery Storage
The Battery Storage sites were put out to mini competition through the Chest on 24th
March 2022 and closed on 11th April 2022.
The following ratios were applied to the mini competition:
•
•
•

Quality 40%
Price 40%
Social Value 20%

There are 8 suppliers on the lot and each was given the opportunity to conduct
accompanied site visits on 28 th April 2022. Two suppliers attended the site visits, this
resulted in seven declining to tender and one supplier submitting a bid.
There were 3 evaluators of the bid to score the Price and Quality aspects of the
tenders, with moderation sessions facilitated by GMCA Procurement to agree the final
scores. The Procurement Team reviewed the Social Value submission.

Name of Bidder

Polysolar Ltd

% Price
score

% Quality
score inc SV

% Overall
Score

Max 40%

Max 60%

100%

40%

39%

79%

The bid was evaluated and moderated to obtain the above score. Their submission
was in line with their bid to be a Framework Supplier and the supplier is appointable
based on their submission.
3.

Social Value

Although there is a limited duration and scale of the project, consideration was given
Social Value was at 20% of the evaluation criteria and we asked the bidders to utilise
the SCC Themes, Outcomes and Measures (TOM’s) to maximise the benefits to the
community, local supply chain and environment.

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 34

The bidder demonstrated a satisfactory capacity to deliver Social Value outcomes
which were valued at £305,377.56 and the achievement of these will be reported on
as a KPI of the project.
There are in excess of 80 measures in the Social Value Portal TOM’s. Some of the
measures covered in the Social Value offer included in this project are; numbers of
direct employees retained, percentage of local employees, voluntary hours donated,
local supply chain spend, new local businesses added to the supply chain, spend
through SME’s, in kind donations, electric vehicle usage.
4. Timescales
The original tender specified an end date of 30 th June for the completion of works
which was based on the ability to draw down the relevant grant to fund the works.
Given the information contained in the tender return, whilst the contractors will be able
to undertake the majority of the preparation and plant installation there is a small
element that will run past the 30 th June deadline. This is estimated to be less than 10%
of the overall value at c£65,000, assurance through clarification meetings has been
given by the contractor and the contract contains a clause regarding liquidated
damages if this were to increase. To facilitate the delivery of the scheme, and
maximise the drawdown of grant, the GMCA has increased our grant for other projects
so that SCC can utilise it’s own funding, which is agreed from the SCC USB Capital
budget, for all elements of the project to be delivered post 30 th June.
5. Proposed Solution
Polysolar in conjunction with their technology partner Wattstor have produced a
bespoke indoor battery energy storage solution (BESS) for each site which consists
of both a hardware and an energy management software offering.
The hardware consists of a modular battery stack and inverter with a 25-year design
life, specified for the climatic conditions of the site. The bidirectional inverter is
specifically designed for high voltage batteries, discharging and charging the battery,
so that time-of-use benefit can be optimised. It is highly efficient over the operating
range, with a fast response time making it suitable for the peak shaving and grid
services applications it will perform for the authority. The software element and energy
management system (EMS) platform controls the battery and any building load to
optimise energy usage and maximise revenue generation and carbon savings. This
solution has been conformed as in use by other named local authorities.
The BESS system is provided with a 2-year product defects and workmanship
warranty. The Inverters have a 5 - year product warranty, extendable to 10 on request
and the batteries have a 10-year warranty. This includes a performance warranty of
75% capacity at 10 years or 3,650 cycles, or 70% capacity at 5,475 cycles, equivalent
to 15 years.
To ensure battery storage systems used in conjunction with solar perform safely and
optimally, it is essential that appropriate fire safety measures form part of the detailed
design. A very high level of safety measures have therefore been specified as part of

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 35

the design specification for each site, which will not only include heat sensors, but also
the installation of more advanced localised Li-on Tamer fire detection system as well
as the installation of Stat-X fire suppression system and where necessary, the
installation of an air conditioning unit.
6. Energy savings
Estimated potential savings just from load shifting alone by charging up the batteries
at cheaper night rate and then discharging this during the peak day rate are detailed
below:
Worsley
Leisure
Centre

ENERGY BILL SAVINGS FROM LOAD SHIFTING*
Average energy used to charge the battery during the night
Average cost of energy used to charge the battery during the night
Average energy supplied by the battery to the building during the day
Average cost of grid electricity avoided from using the battery during the day
Total average daily energy bill saving in Yr 1
Financial net benefit year 1
Total energy bill savings over lifetime (15 years)

113.1
36.39
103.1
£
42.71
£
6.32
£ 2,306.90
£ 34,603.54
£

Irlam &
Broughton
Cadishead
Leisure
Leisure
Centre
Centre
113.1
113.1
£
36.47 £
36.54
103.1
103.1
£
42.67 £
42.74
£
6.20 £
6.20
£ 2,264.19 £ 2,264.45
£ 33,962.87 £ 33,966.80

Salford
Sports
Village

Turnpike
Depot
113.1
35.59
103.1
£
41.32
£
5.73
£ 2,090.29
£ 31,354.32
£

113.1
36.11
103.1
£
43.20
£
7.09
£ 2,587.76
£ 38,816.45
£

Ordsall
Leisure
Centre
113.1
36.86
103.1
£
42.92
£
6.06
£ 2,210.85
£ 33,162.71
£

Alderbrook
Primary

£
£
£
£
£

113.1
39.59
103.1
42.33
2.74
1,001.84
15,027.60

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
·
·
·

Five year environment plan for Greater Manchester
Great Eight Priority - Tackling the climate emergency
Climate Emergency Declaration

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
There are no equality impacts arising as a consequence of this report.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:
Timescales - to deliver the scheme and maximise the grant funding element. This
relates the Supply chain and lead in time for the delivery of the battery units.
Assurance through clarification meetings has been given by the contractor and the
contract contains a clause regarding liquidated damages if the project overran.
Technology – The technology is new to SCC. The tender return specifies Lithium-Ion
battery technology and there are associated risks around it being flammable.
Therefore, the detailed design will include equipment linked to fire detection and
suppression at each site.

SOURCE OF FUNDING:
93% grant funding

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 36

7% USB Capital Budget - Property

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Shared Legal Services
In order to access the grant funding made available by GMCA to the Council, a grant
funding agreement will need to be entered into. Legal Services will be happy to
review the terms of the agreement to ensure that these are suitable for the Council.
The Grant Agreement contains provisions enabling GMCA to either
suspend/withdraw unpaid grant or seek clawback/reimbursement of any grant
already paid, in the event that the Council is in breach of the agreement, therefore it
will be very important for the Council to comply with the key terms and keep GMCA
updated in the event of changing circumstances (in particular where these will/may
result in a delay to the proposed timetable of delivery).
In particular it is noted that GMCA required delivery of the project by 30 th June 2022,
however following the procurement process, suppliers have confirmed that this is
unlikely to be achievable (albeit it is estimated by the winning provider that 90% of
the works should be able to be completed). This would mean that the Council would
not have incurred all eligible expenditure prior to the expiry of the grant period (i.e.
30th June 2022), so there is a risk under the terms of the Grant Agreement that
GMCA would not be obliged to reimburse the Council for the remaining 10% of costs
(to be incurred after 30th June 2022) using the remainder of the Grant. However it
appears that GMCA has indicated that notwithstanding this, they would be prepared
to provide the grant funding for the remaining post-June elements of the project. This
would have the effect of reducing that small risk significantly.
Following the procurement exercise set out in this report, Legal Services has
provided advice regarding the proposed Works Contract to be entered into with the
winning supplier. This includes a provision for liquidated damages as described
above in the report, which should reduce the potential financial risk to the Council in
the event of a delay in delivery of the project.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
Submitted by: Gemma Singleton, Senior Accountant Tel: 0161 793 2578
Date: 21.4.22
Total project value is £924,234 for 7 sites, 100% externally grant funded.
Delivery of the project extended from 30th Sept 2021 to 30th June 2022, this will
allow for battery storage systems to be installed at the 7 sites to compliment the
Solar PV install and maximise the benefit to Salford City Council in respect of
reducing electricity costs.
The delivery will complete after the 30 th June but over 90% of the costs will be
incurred before the end of June 2022.
The project will have no unbudgeted impact on the council.

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 37

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Procurement Team
The project was procured by means of mini competitions utilising the GMCA Go
Neutral Smart Energy Framework agreement. All providers for the Lot were given
the same opportunity to apply but upon completion only one provider submitted a
compliant bid. The process undertaken is in line with the framework rules and
complies with the Procurement Contract Regulations, therefore this complies with
Salford City Councils contractual standing orders.
HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:
N/a for this framework
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Hayley Nixon
Salford City Council is seeking to install battery storage systems at 7 sites to
increase the flexibility of local energy supply as part of its contribution towards
Greater Manchester’s target of becoming a carbon-neutral city region by 2038. The
GM 5 Year Environment Plan commits GM to increasing local renewable energy
generation by at least 45 MW by 2024 and councils need to be at the forefront of this
work.
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
N/a

CONTACT OFFICER: Hayley Nixon, Commercial Project Manager
Majid Maqbool, Energy Manager
TELEPHONE NUMBER: WFH
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):
Specify the ward(s) affected, if all wards, state this fact.
All
Appendix 1 – Site List
Site
Worsley Leisure Centre
Broughton Leisure Centre
Irlam & Cadishead Leisure Centre
Turnpike Depot
Salford Sports Village
Ordsall Leisure Centre

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 38

Alderbrook Primary School

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5d
Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF
The Strategic Director for Place
TO
Procurement Board
ON
11th May 2022
TITLE: Approval to go out to competition for New Bailey Gateway Phase 2 –
Junction Of New Bailey Street And Chapel Street

RECOMMENDATION:
That Procurement Board grant authority for the New Bailey Gateway Phase 2
scheme to be procured in accordance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules
through an existing Framework.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this report is to request approval to go out competition for the
delivery of the abovementioned scheme.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:


Report Of The Strategic Director For Environment And Community Safety To
The City Mayor For Property And Regeneration Briefing On 13th March 2017.
New Bailey Gateway



Report to Lead Member For Planning And Sustainable Development (Briefing)
15th March 2022



Report to Lead Member for Housing, Property and Regeneration at Property
& Regeneration Briefing on 28th March 2022

KEY DECISION: NO

Page 41

DETAILS:
In September 2015 design feasibility work commenced on the New Bailey Gateway
project. Based on criteria established through the funding partners, the key aims of the
scheme are to support regeneration in this key location within the city centre. The
optioneering phase also resulted in the splitting of the scheme into two distinct phases
of works.
Phase 1 works were completed in March 2018 and centred on improvements along
New Bailey Street but excluded the junction with Chapel Street.
The Phase 2 scheme includes improvements to the junction of New Bailey Street and
Chapel Street and the introduction of a bus gate on New Bailey Street and Bridge
Street. The bus gate, to be delivered by Manchester City Council, would create a bus
only route heading out of Manchester to the west of Left Bank on Bridge Street.
Procurement Board approval is sought only for elements of the scheme at the junction
of New Bailey Street and Chapel Street.
The scheme has been developed following traffic modelling carried out by Transport
for Greater Manchester (TfGM) and design discussions with TfGM’s Urban Traffic
Control (UTC) team.
The following benefits have been identified for the delivery of the full Phase 2 scheme
(incorporating the junction of New Bailey Street and Chapel Street and the New Bailey
Bus Gate):


Improves bus journey times at a known delay point;



Locks in the benefits of recent improvements to the Manchester and
Salford Inner Relief Road by forcing more through journeys to use this
route;



Complements the new public realm introduced on New Bailey Street by
reducing traffic;



Supports the ongoing development of New Bailey and regeneration in
the city centre;



Supports proposals that are being developed for the junction of Trinity
Way and Chapel Street including improved cycling and pedestrian
facilities. A reduction in general traffic using New Bailey Street is
expected to be required to deliver this scheme in full.



Supports emerging plans in Manchester for Deansgate and regeneration
of the St Mary’s Parsonage area of Manchester.

The next stage of the project requires the scheme to be tendered for a price. This will
allow the selection of a preferred supplier and an update of the scheme costs.

Page 42

The recommended procurement route for the main works contract is the existing
Bolton Council Highways Framework Contract 2019/2023 (Option B).
The Bolton Framework has successfully delivered a number of schemes of a si milar
scale/nature to the junction of New Bailey Street and Chapel Street over the course of
its lifespan and has been used to procure contractors for adjoining schemes on Gore
Street (Rosgal Limited) and Chapel Street East Phase 1 (The Casey Group Limited).
This successful track record, potential for achieving value for money and the nature of
the works being proposed are the reasons the Bolton Framework is recommended.
The forecasted key project milestones for the scheme are detailed below:

Junction of New Bailey Street and Chapel Street
Key Milestones

Completion
(Forecasted)

Detailed Design

May 2022

Presentation to Lead Member regarding proposed Traffic
Regulation Orders

May 2022

Procurement (up to completion of tender assessment)

July 2022

Construction Starts

August 2022

Construction Finishes

February 2023

The scheme will be funded through a mix of sources which are contributing towards
all phases of the New Bailey Gateway scheme. £1.7m Growth Deal 2 monies have
been secured, along with match funding from English Cities Fund (£362k). In
addition, S106 contributions have been secured totalling £638k.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
The scheme will contribute to Salford’s Great Eight priorities by supporting
improvements to our streets and is particularly relevant to priority 3, Tackling the
climate emergency, and priority 6, Promoting transport and digital connectivity.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
The scheme will contribute to improving accessibility for all through the establishment
of safe and attractive routes for pedestrians and cyclists. This will support greater
equality through promoting affordable transport options that facilitate access to
employment and public transport (through improved access to Salford Central Station
and quality bus services along Chapel Street and New Bailey Street).

Page 43

Contribution to Social Value will also be considered as an element within the
assessment of tender options through quantitative assessment using the Social Value
Portal and part of the assessment of the quality submission. This is expected to
include, but not limited to, consideration of the following:
-

Details of any traineeships, apprenticeships, work experience placements and
employment of local labour on this contract;
Details of any commitments to pay the Salford Living Wage;
Details of any local companies to be employed as sub-contractors or local
suppliers to be utilised in delivering this contract;
Details of any planned engagement with local secondary schools around
curriculum and careers development;
Details of any proposed donations or in-kind contributions to local community
and user groups; and
Details of any proposed corporate volunteering days.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:
Medium: A robust risk management process has been implemented, commencing at
project inception stage. A risk register has been established and this is being
maintained as a live document which is reviewed periodically and updated following
any noteworthy changes to the situation.
Detailed designs are in the process of being finalised for the project and will be
completed ahead of the tender process and submission of tender prices. The
completion of the tender process is required to provide confirmation of the scheme
costs and to inform the final review of the overall funding requirements.

SOURCE OF FUNDING:
The approved funding submission identified that the scheme is to be paid for through
a combination of Growth Deal 2 funding, secured from Transport for Greater
Manchester (TfGM), along with third party match funding from English Cities Fund and
local authority match funding secured from S106 contributions.
The below table provides a summary of the approved funding allocations for Phase 1
and Phase 2 and the total funding for the scheme. The total cost of completing phase
1 of the scheme was £1.4m with the remaining funding of £1.3m to be allocated for
phase 2.

Page 44

Scheme funding and spend profile
Funding Source
Growth Deal 2
LA Match
Funding (S106)
Third Party
(ECF) Match
Funding
Total

Secured
Funding

Phase 1
Outturn Costs

Phase 2
Funding

£1,700,000.00

£1,015,506.58

£684,493.42

£310,000.00

-

£310,000.00

£690,000.00

£362,232.96

£327,767.04

£2,700,000.00

£1,377,739.54

£1,322,260.46

Greater Manchester Combined Authority (Growth Deal 2) £1.7 million
Following submission of a mini-business case this grant funding was approved at the
Greater Manchester Transport Growth Group meeting on the 20 th December 2016. All
costs associated with the scheme incurred by the City Council are being drawn down
on a quarterly basis through TfGM.
Select Property Group (S106)
Two separate S106 agreements to the value of £880,000 have been signed with the
Select Property Group in relation to the developments at ‘Riverside’ and ‘Riverview’.
The projects named in these agreements include allocations to contribute to the
delivery of New Bailey Gateway.
S106 Climate Change £90,000
A contribution of £90,000 is to be drawn down from within the councils S106 funding
allocation from S106 relating to climate change.
English Cities Fund (match funding)
Salford City Council’s development partner English Cities Fund (ECF) has agreed to
contribute a total of £362,232 towards phase 1 of the scheme.

See financial comments below.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323.
Date: 03.02.22
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSOs), failing which a contract
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. CSO’s stipulate that

Page 45

where a suitable framework exists, this must be used unless there is an auditable
reason not to do so.
The proposed procurement of the works will be by way of a tender exercise in
accordance with the process set out in the Bolton Council Highways Framework
Contract 2019/2023 (Option B), which itself was procured in accordance with the PCR
using an OJEU process, and will therefore ensure that the risk of challenge to the
award of any contract is minimal and that any challenge, should it materialise, is
extremely unlikely to be successful.
The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement / evaluation
process, a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council,
as and when those services are required. If they are required then the Council will
undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the providers who
have been selected to be on the framework and this may be through any number of
ways, in this instance by way of mini competition. A contract will then be formed
between the Council and the chosen provider(s). The Council will need to have
followed the procedure set out in the framework agreement for mini competition to
ensure the procurement process is compliant.
It is important that the Council complies with the terms of the Growth Deal 2 grant
funding agreement with TfGM (in particular ensuring that the fund is only used for
eligible expenditure) and any timescales around expenditure and reporting are
adhered to, otherwise the Council may be at risk of TfGM seeking clawback of the
funding for failure to comply.
The report refers to funding for the works coming from s106 funds. The expenditure
must be in accordance with the terms of the relevant planning obligations. Should the
Council allocate S106 funding outside of the conditions within the agreements, or
outside the timescales, or in breach of applicable Regulations, a developer may
challenge that decision and claim back contributions.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Natalie Birchall Finance Officer L2 Ext
2316. Date: 03.02.22
The New Bailey Gateway scheme is being delivered in two phases with total funding
of £2.7m secured through a combination of Growth Deal 2 funding from Transport for
Greater Manchester (TfGM), third party match funding from English Cities Fund and
local authority match funding secured from S106 contributions.
The first phase of the scheme had an outturn cost of £1.4m and was funded from a
mix of secured Growth Deal grant and secured ECF contribution.
The second phase of work is estimated to cost £1.3m and is to be funded through the
remainder of the Growth Deal grant and secured S106 contributions. The confirmed
S106 contributions include two separate S106 agreements signed with the Select
Property Group in relation to the developments at ‘Riverside’ and ‘Riverview’. A further

Page 46

contribution is to be drawn down from within the councils S106 funding allocation from
S106 relating to climate change.
In accordance with Growth Deal 2 rules, SCC will cash flow the project and re-claim
from TfGM, via quarterly claims.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:
The Bolton Council Highways Framework Contract 2019/2023 is a compliant
procurement in line with the Public Contract Regulations 2015 and SCC Standing
Orders. Procurement will support the technical team to undertake a complaint mini
competition through this framework in line with the framework agreement.

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:
Not Applicable

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Simon Telford in consultation with
Michael Hemmingway – Principal Officer Climate Change
The scheme and the development of the Bee Network in city centre Salford will support
mode shift from private car to walking and cycling. One of the objectives of the scheme
is supporting walking and cycling and greater public transport use. More sustainable
travel choices will help to reduce transport related emissions.
Tenderers were asked to provide details of any specific environmental sustainability
practices / measures to be employed on this contract.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
Not Applicable

CONTACT OFFICER: Simon Telford
TEL NO: 07799677214

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):
Not applicable

Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5e
Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF
The Strategic Director for People Services
TO
Procurement Board
ON
11th May 2022

TITLE: Approval to Award the Contract for St Andrew’s CE Primary, roofing
brickwork and internal repairs, phase 2

RECOMMENDATION:
That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for St Andrew’s CE
Primary, roofing brickwork and internal repairs phase 2 as detailed in the table
below:

Detail required

Answers

Title/Description of Contracted
Service/Supply/Project

St Andrew’s CE Primary – Roofing, Brickwork
and Internal Repairs, Phase 2

Name of Successful Contractor

Schofield & Sons Ltd

Supplier Registration Number

025459259

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation

Private Limited Company

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Status of Organisation

SME

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Contract Value (£)

£

158,551.00 (£185,000 full project)

Contract Duration

3 months

Contract Start Date

28/05/2022

Contract End Date

02/09/2022

Optional Extension Period 1

N/a

Optional Extension Period 2

N/a

Page 49

Detail required

Answers

Who will approve each Extension
Period?
Contact Officer (Name & number)
Lead Service Group

Choose an item.
Les Woolhouse – 07713 786 093
People Services

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement)
Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework
reference & title, start/ end date
Funding Source

Mini Competition
Minor Building Works Framework Lot 2
Capital Programme

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s
Employment Charter
EC: Committed to sign up to charter
EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned
contract.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
Exempt under Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972
‘Tender Submissions and Evaluation Documents’

KEY DECISION: No

DETAILS:
1.

Background

The works have been identified as essential maintenance from the schools asset
management plan. Phase 1 works to the Oxford Street and Barton Lane elevations
was completed in September 2021. To complete the phased programme of works
repairs/refurbishment are now required to the St Andrew’s Avenue and Talbot Street
elevations.
The external works are the renewal of the lead valleys, gutters flashings and
soakers. Repairs are required to terracotta copings and the ridge tiles are to be lifted

Page 50

and re-bedded. Internally areas of addled and damaged plaster are to be removed
and replastered with decoration to the same areas.
2.

The Procurement Process

The works for this project have been tendered under the Council’s e-tendering portal
in accordance with Contractual Standing Orders. Tenders were let by mini competition
under the Minor Building Works Framework Lot 2 Agreement.
Two companies submitted a tender and these have been evaluated in accordance
with selection criteria.
The evaluation scores are as follows:-

% Price
score

% Quality
score

% Overall
Score

Max 70%

Max 30%

100%

Schofield & Sons Ltd

70.00

24.00

94.00

Provider B

51.09

22.00

73.09

Name of Bidder

Following the evaluation process the company that scored the highest in accordance
with the selection criteria was Schofield & Sons Ltd with a tender of £158,551.00. Their
submission produced a score of 94.00% and represents the most economically
advantageous offer to the Council which also supports social value.
3.

Social Value

Schofield & Sons Ltd are a Salford based contractor. 85% of their in-house
workforce are Salford residents and they are currently supporting an apprentice on
year 1 NVQ from the Walkden area. They are committed to sponsoring him through
his training and providing a permanent position on completion.
They are an accredited Living Wage Employer with all employees being paid in
excess of the Living Wage.
They have provided work experience placements for the local high schools over the
past ten years and this has resulted in two successful completed apprenticeships.
On this project they propose to attend school assemblies and give a general talk on
the works to be completed, safety considerations for pupils, staff and contractors and
the long term benefits this project will produce. This will be both light-hearted and
informative.
As a local contractor Schofield & Sons Ltd also support the local supply chain and
propose using the following sub-contractors


Scaffording – Greenwood Scaffold, Modewell Road, Salford

Page 51




Building Materials – Travis Perkins, Liverpool Road, Eccles
Skip Hire – Circle Skip Hire, Kearsley

The utilisation of these companies will contribute keeping money in Salford and
reduce the environmental impact of their CO2 emissions travelling to the site.
Schofield & Sons Ltd hold regular meetings to discuss all aspects of their Social
Responsibility Programme and will develop, monitor and report back on the social
value aspects that they are delivering on this programme.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
All relating to carbon reduction and social value outcomes relating to local
employment.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
Work with construction projects is valuable in supporting local employment and in
supporting local supply chains in construction work. This in turn aids the growth and
regeneration of the City.
ASSESSMENT OF RISK: High
Repairs are required to prevent water ingress into the building. Repairs and rebedding the terracotta copings and ridge tiles will maintain the integrity of the
building and maintain the structural stability of these areas. If these works are not
undertaken there is a high risk of debris coming loose, particularly during bad
weather, and causing harm to the public and the building.
SOURCE OF FUNDING:
There is funding available under the Education Capital Programme to cover the
costs of the project.
Expenditure code: E22012
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Shared Legal Service – Contact Officer
and telephone number: Tony Hatton – Principal Solicitor tel. 0161 219 6323
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. The proposed award of
the contract follows a tender exercise by mini competition in accordance with the Minor
Building Works Framework Agreement Lot 2.

Page 52

The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/ evaluation
process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council,
as and when those services are required. If they are required then the Council will
undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the providers who
have been selected to be on the framework and this may be through any number of
ways e.g. mini-competition, direct allocation etc. depending on the circumstances. A
contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen provider/s.
The Council will need to have followed the procedure set out in the framework
agreement for mini competition to ensure the procurement process is compliant. Two
companies from the framework suppliers submitted a tender, and the bid has been
evaluated on the most economically advantageous tender basis in line with published
procedures resulting in the proposed award of the contract to Schofield & Sons Ltd.
The procurement procedures therefore appear robust and compliant with the
requirements of the Council’s CSO’s and PCR.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Alex Archer, Finance Manager 778 0498
The works will be funded by the 2022/23 capital programme in the sum of £185,000.
(Tender costs £158,551 plus surveys, professional fees and associated additional
costs of £26,449).
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Corporate Procurement Team
Contact officer and telephone number: Deborah Derbyshire (Category Manager –
Corporate Procurement Team) tel 0161 686 6244
The project has been competitively tendered by means of a mini competition under
the Council’s own Minor Building Works Framework Lot 2 which complies with the
Councils Contractual Standing Orders and the Procurement Contract Regulations.
The winning tenderer has submitted the most economically advantageous offer in line
with the rules of the framework.
HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/a
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:
No significant Climate Change implications in this project. All projects are developed
to meet or exceed current legislation and requirements relating to energy efficiency
and carbon reduction targets. Projects are required to support the Council’s objectives
of becoming carbon neutral by 2028.
The works will be programmed to minimise the traffic impact in the area. Any waste
materials will be removed and taken to a transfer station for systematic sorting and
recycling to ensure minimal landfill waste.

Page 53

Sustainability plans would be targeted to also align with opportunities to continue to
deliver social value outcomes.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/a
CONTACT OFFICER: Les Woolhouse
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 07713 786 093
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):
Barton & Winton
Name

Signature

Date

Authorisation:
Charlotte Ramsden, Strategic Director,
People

26 April 2022

Page 54

Agenda Item 5f
Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF
The Strategic Director for People
TO
Procurement Board
ON
11th May 2022

TITLE: Approval to Award the Contract for Lewis Street Primary School roof repairs
and window replacements, phase 1

RECOMMENDATION:
That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for Lewis Street Primary
School roof repairs and window replacements, phase 1 as detailed in the table
below:

Detail required

Answers

Title/Description of Contracted
Service/Supply/Project

Lewis Street Primary School – Roof repairs and
window replacements, phase 1

Name of Successful Contractor

Wright Build Ltd

Supplier Registration Number

01401191

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation

Private Limited Company

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Status of Organisation

SME

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Contract Value (£)

£

289,426.00 (£340,000 full project)

Contract Duration

14 weeks

Contract Start Date

28/05/2022

Contract End Date

02/09/2022

Optional Extension Period 1

N/a

Page 55

Detail required

Answers

Optional Extension Period 2
Who will approve each Extension
Period?
Contact Officer (Name & number)
Lead Service Group

N/a
Choose an item.
Les Woolhouse 07713 786 093
People Services

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement)
Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework
reference & title, start/ end date
Funding Source

Mini Competition
Minor Building Works Framework Lot 2
Capital Programme

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s
Employment Charter
EC: Committed to sign up to charter
EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned
contract.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
Exempt under Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972
‘Tender Submissions and Evaluation Documents’

KEY DECISION: No

DETAILS:
1.

Background

The main school building is a traditional red brick building with several pitched roofs.
Copings and brickwork to the perimeter of the roof deteriorated and works are
required to the ensure that the building is wind and watertight. The areas that have
been identified as the highest priority are along Lewis Street elevation.

Page 56

The windows on the Lewis Street elevation have exceeded their anticipated lifespan
and replacement aluminium windows are required. This will also aid in improving the
ventilation to the rooms.
The pointing of the brickwork at first floor level including the terracotta copings is
failing on the Lewis Street, Parr Street and St John Street upper elevations also
needs to be repointed. There are areas internally areas of addled and damaged
plaster which has been caused by the failure of the pointing. This is to be removed
and replastered followed by isolated decoration.

2.

The Procurement Process

The works for this project have been tendered under the Council’s e-tendering portal
in accordance with Contractual Standing Orders. Tenders were let by mini competition
under the Minor Building Works Framework Lot 2 Agreement.
Two companies submitted a tender and these have been evaluated in accordance
with selection criteria.
The evaluation scores are as follows:-

% Price
score

% Quality
score

% Overall
Score

Max 70%

Max 30%

100%

Wright Build Ltd

70.00

22.00

92.00

Provider B

67.58

24.00

91.58

Name of Bidder

Following the evaluation process the company that scored the highest in accordance
with the selection criteria was Wright Build Ltd with a tender of £289,426.00. Their
submission produced a score of 92.00% and represents the most economically
advantageous offer to the Council which also supports social value.
3.

Social Value

Wright Build have advised that they will support the Salford City Mayor’s Charter for
Employment Standards and help raise employment standards for employees and
businesses across the city. They have advised that it is within their business plan to
submit an application for accreditation to the Living Wage Foundation in the near
future.
They have created training/employment opportunities for Salford people and will
notify the council when vacancies occur to offer positions to the local community.

Page 57

Wright Build operate a sustainable managed supply chain throughout the greater
Manchester area and are able to subcontract works to local companies who naturally
employ a high proportion of local labour.
They have advised that they will source materials, goods and products from Salford
based businesses to boost the local economy wherever possible. KPI’s to measure
this throughout the project duration are set up at project inception.
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
All relating to carbon reduction and social value outcomes relating to local
employment.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
Work with construction projects is valuable in supporting local employment and in
supporting local supply chains in construction work. This in turn aids the growth and
regeneration of the City.
ASSESSMENT OF RISK: High
Failure to maintain the fabric of the building could result in the closure of classrooms
and ancillary areas which would have a negative impact on the education of the
pupils.
SOURCE OF FUNDING:
There is funding available under the Capital Programme to cover the costs of the
project.
Expenditure code: E22015
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Shared Legal Service – Contact Officer
and telephone number: Tony Hatton – Principal Solicitor tel. 0161 219 6323
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. The proposed award of
the contract follows a tender exercise by mini competition in accordance with the Minor
Building Works Framework Agreement Lot 2.
The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/ evaluation
process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council,
as and when those services are required. If they are required then the Council will
undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the providers who
have been selected to be on the framework and this may be through any number of

Page 58

ways e.g. mini-competition, direct allocation etc. depending on the circumstances. A
contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen provider/s.
The Council will need to have followed the procedure set out in the framework
agreement for mini competition to ensure the procurement process is compliant. Two
companies from the framework suppliers submitted a tender, and the bid has been
evaluated on the most economically advantageous tender basis in line with published
procedures resulting in the proposed award of the contract to Wright Build Ltd. The
procurement procedures therefore appear robust and compliant with the requirements
of the Council’s CSO’s and PCR.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Alex Archer, Finance Manager 778 0498
The works will be funded by the 2022/23 capital programme in the sum of £340,000.
(Tender costs £289,426 plus surveys, professional fees and associated additional
costs of £50,574).
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Corporate Procurement Team
Contact officer and telephone number: Deborah Derbyshire (Category Manager –
Corporate Procurement Team) tel 0161 686 6244
The project has been competitively tendered by means of a mini competition under
the Council’s own Minor Building Works Framework Lot 2 which complies with the
Councils Contractual Standing Orders and the Procurement Contract Regulations.
The winning tenderer has submitted the most economically advantageous offer in line
with the rules of the framework.
HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/a
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:
No significant Climate Change implications in this project. All projects are developed
to meet or exceed current legislation and requirements relating to energy efficiency
and carbon reduction targets. Projects are required to support the Council’s objectives
of becoming carbon neutral by 2028.
The works will be programmed to minimise the traffic impact in the area. Any waste
materials will be removed and taken to a transfer station for systematic sorting and
recycling to ensure minimal landfill waste.
Sustainability plans would be targeted to also align with opportunities to continue to
deliver social value outcomes.

Page 59

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/a
CONTACT OFFICER: Les Woolhouse
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 07713 786 093
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): Barton & Winton

Name

Signature

Date

Authorisation:
Charlotte Ramsden, Strategic Director,
People

26 April 2022

Page 60

Agenda Item 5g
Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF
The Strategic Director for Place
TO
Procurement Board
ON
11th May 2022

TITLE: Construction of move on accommodation through the Rough Sleepers
Accommodation Programme (RSAP)

RECOMMENDATION:
That Procurement Board approves the council entering a Pre-Construction Services
Agreement (PCSA) with PLP to enable the building of 24 modular units through the
Rough Sleepers Accommodation Programme (RSAP) and to commence direct
negotiations with them to deliver additional affordable units on these sites, subject to
satisfactory assessments of value for money as detailed in the table below:

Detail required

Answers

Title/Description of Contracted
Service/Supply/Project

Building of 24 modular units, across 3 sites,
through RSAP

Name of Successful Contractor

PLP Construction

Supplier Registration Number

03244506

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation

Private Limited Company

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Status of Organisation

SME

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Contract Value (£)

£268,500.
Full construction costs will be confirmed at Stage
2 of the procurement process

Contract Duration

7 months

Contract Start Date

16/05/2022

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 61

Detail required

Answers

Contract End Date

30/11/2022

Optional Extension Period 1

months

Optional Extension Period 2

months

Who will approve each Extension
Period?
Contact Officer (Name & number)

Procurement Board (extension > £150k)
Konrad Magdzinski 793 2197

Lead Service Group

Place

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement)

Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework
reference & title, start/ end date

ICN Framework
Innovation Chain North (ICN) is a framework for
construction and associated professional
services procured under the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 and is OJEU compliant. It has
been designed to support the delivery of new
homes and associated social infrastructure
across the North of England. The framework
includes lots for contractors, associated
professional services as well as a Dynamic
Purchasing System (DPS) for the supply of
Modular Homes.

Funding Source

Grant

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s
Employment Charter
EC: Committed to sign up to charter

YES

EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
This report seeks approval to award a Pre-Construction Services Agreement for the
building of 24 modular apartment units, across 3 different sites, through the RSAP
and to consider the construction of a further 19 affordable homes on the same sites.
The apartments will provide self-contained supported housing to help meet an acute
need for additional move on accommodation in the city. The appointment, at a cost
of £268,500, will commit to appointing a contractor under stage 1 to develop costs
and designs under a two-stage procurement route. Permission is also sought to
explore using the same contractor the delivery of some additional affordable units on
these sites, subject to satisfactory assessments of value for money. The report also
seeks approval to place a deposit for the first set of units manufacture (£120,000) to
maintain programme and draw down of grant.

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 62

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:


Homelessness Strategy



Lead Member for Property and Regeneration 8th November 2021: Salford’s
Rough Sleepers Accommodation Programme (RSAP) Update.

KEY DECISION:
Yes

DETAILS:
1.

Background

Homelessness has been increasing in the city since 2012 and the council is currently
housing 316 people who have slept rough or been at significant risk of rough
sleeping. There is an acute need for move on accommodation, particularly for those
who have complex needs. In response, the council submitted four bids to RSAP, for
the delivery of new move on accommodation in the city. All four bids were
successful and attracted grant of £1,591,500 with a requirement of match funding of
£1,100,000 from the council’s capital programme.
The tenancies will be allocated and managed by the council’s Supported Tenancy
service. Revenue funding has also been obtained through the grant to deliver the
ongoing support.
Buttress Architects were commissioned to carry out the pre planning assessment for
the three sites at Eccles New Road and Tootal Grove in Weaste, and at Harcourt
Street in Walkden. Consultation has been carried out with neighbours and user
groups to inform the design process. As part of the pre planning assessment the
sites have also been identified for potential development for additional affordable
housing as part of the councils affordable housing programme for Derive.
This report seeks to approve PLP Construction as the preferred contractor for the
construction of the RSAP move on accommodation following a first stage tender and
subject to satisfactory conclusion of the second stage. In order to firm up the total
contract value it will be necessary to enter into a Pre-Construction Services
Agreement (PCSA) up to the value of £268,500 which will allow the commissioning
of further surveys, placing of orders for utilities if required and the ability to place

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 63

manufacture orders prior to contract if needed. The Deposit for first set of units
manufacture included in the value above is estimated at £120,000
Permission is also sought to commence direct negotiation with PLP for the additional
affordable units noted above. It is likely that utilising the same contractor for the
construction of the affordable accommodation on the remainder of the site offers
advantages to the construction process with shared infrastructure costs,
preliminaries and site set up. The contractor would therefore be asked to provide a
separate price for the construction of affordable homes, specifically identifying
economies. This would be subject to a value for money assessment from our
Employers Agent, with a reserved right to carry out a competitive tender exercise if
necessary.
2.

The Procurement Process

In line with SCC procurement requirements the project was first issued via an
Expression of Interest to all contractors under the ICN Framework. Consequently, 5
Contractors provided a response confirming their intention to tender for the works. 15
Contractors declined the opportunity citing reasons such as tender timescales,
pipeline commitments and ability to deliver MMC at a competitive price.
After receiving the tenders Identity Consult, our consultants who were leading on this
procurement, were informed that 3 of the contractors would not be submitting a
tender as they were unable to demonstrate the experience of providing similar
projects. Identity Consult sought to encourage submissions by clarifying what was
required however all 3 parties still declined to tender. 2 contractors returned their
submission by the required deadline.
The preferred Contractor was selected on the basis of best value which meant that
proposals were assessed on both quality and price parameters on an agreed 80%
quality / 20% price split. The reason that the price element was proposed at 20%
was because the information on which contractors could price was minimal and
given the nature of the project, the timescales and the requirement for a contractor to
provide a full turnkey solution it was felt that ensuring ability to deliver on quality was
of paramount importance.
The qualitative element of the submission equated to 80% of the overall marks and
was evaluated against the following criteria and weighting:
Project Profiles – 20%
Case Studies – 20%
Preconstruction Programme – 20%
Construction Programme – 20%
Social Value – 20%
The financial assessment carried 20% of the overall marks available.
A Pricing Book template was provided within the tender documents in which the
Contractors were required to detail the following costs: inflation, prelims, OH&P

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 64

A Qualitative Review took place with submissions scored individually by 2
representatives from SCC and 1 from Identity Consult and were reviewed against the
selection criteria and scores allocated to each Contractor for each question. A
moderation meeting was subsequently held to agree a score for each response.
Contractor

Quality Score

Cost Score

Ranking

20%

Total
Score
66.4%

John Southworth
Builders
PLP Construction

46.4%
68.8%

17.53%

86.33%

1

2

Following conclusion of the selection process PLP Construction are ranked as
preferred Contractor. PLP Construction scored highest on the qualitative assessment
whilst also providing costs for the elements requested that was considered within the
range of what would be expected. PLP Construction have assumed a phased
approach to the programme, which would allow Site 1 to be complete prior to the end
of March 2023 which meets the target Practical Completion date for grant funding.
Site 2 would reach Practical Completion early April and Site 3 would reach Practical
Completion by June 2023.
3.

Social Value

PLP will have a dedicated Social Value Officer who will engage with
Homelessness charities to provide access to social care and support for the
vulnerable residents who will call these new properties home.
They propose to work with Salford Job Centre on Paddington Close, Emmaus
Salford Homeless Charity, Shelter, Salford Foodbank in Media City, St Luke’s C of E
Primary School, Salford, Willow Tree, Primary School, Buile Hill Academy, All
Hallows RC High School and The Albion Academy, Pendleton
Sixth Form College and Salford City College.
PLP will engage with Salford City Council and Paul Dennett’s Mayoral office in order
to develop a collective plan to deliver a range of social value activities. They will also
commit to joining the Salford Social Value Alliance to help make Salford 10% better,
sign up to the Social Value Pledge and Salford’s Employment Charter.
They have committed to produce a monthly report for Salford City Council outlining
all social value activity achieved on this project. All outcomes can be recorded using
TOMS. Below is an example TOMS table of the social value contribution this project
could achieve:
TOMS
NT7
NT12
NT8

Description
Skills/employment opportunities for
unemployed local people
Work placement opportunities on site
and in the MMC factory
Attendance at Careers Events – local
schools and colleges

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Value
£100.33 x5 people

Total
£501.65

£148.95 x25 weeks

£3724

£14.80 x 5 visits

£74

Page 65

NT10
NT28
NT29
NT1

NT18

Apprenticeship opportunities supported
on the project (Direct and Supply Chain)
Donations to local charities
Volunteering in the community
FTE Directly employed staff who will
work on the project – trades office and
management based in Greater
Manchester
Local Supply Chain / Supplier Spend

£176.80 x 20 weeks

£3536

£1 x £1000
£14.80 x 5
£26,746 x 3.5

£1000
£74
£93,611

£1 x based in Greater
Manchester Area

£650,000
£752,520
Social Value
Activity

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
Housing and Regeneration

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
The delivery of new homelessness move on accommodation and affordable housing
helps to address equality outcomes through the provision of good quality, well
managed and secure housing.
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:
Risks will be monitored and mitigated through the project group. The main risk is
achieving spend in accordance with grant funding requirements. Approval of the
report will ensure the schemes can begin before the end of October 2022.
If at any point the cost is not viable or providing VFM (Value for Money) SCC are not
bound to enter any PCSA or contract with PLP. An assessment of the risk of placing
orders will be carried out prior to placing a deposit on the manufacture of units.
There are also potential construction risks of rising costs and material shortages.
SOURCE OF FUNDING:
Capital Programme and RSAP Grant
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Shared Legal Service – Tony Hatton
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a
contract may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. CSO’s apply
to every contract, including temporary ones, for the procurement of supplies,
services and the execution of works undertaken by or on behalf of the Council,
subject to certain exceptions listed in the Orders.

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 66

CSO’s stipulate that where a suitable framework exists, this must be used unless there
is an auditable reason not to do so. The proposed award of the contract follows a call
off exercise in accordance with the ICN (Innovation Chain North) Framework referred
to in the body of the report, which is a fully compliant framework from a legislative
perspective available for the Council (and other local authorities as described) to use.
The Council can comply with the requirements of PCR by carrying out its own
procurement exercise or relying upon another contracting authority's compliant
procurement exercise. In that regard, contracting authorities may procure goods,
works or services through a ‘central purchasing body’ (and are deemed to have
complied with PCR to the extent that the central purchasing body has). The definition
of ‘central purchasing body’ includes an authority that concludes framework
agreements for works, goods or services intended for one or more contracting
authorities.
In this instance, following an earlier expression of interest, two submissions were
received from tenderers on the framework, which were evaluated on the most
economically advantageous tender basis in line with the published criteria resulting in
the proposed award of the contract to PLP Construction. The Council will need to have
followed the procedure set out in the framework agreement to ensure the procurement
process is compliant and bids are evaluated in accordance with published criteria, in
which case the procurement procedures appear robust and compliant with the
requirements of the Council’s CSO’s and public procurement legislation.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: David R Mills – Commercial Finance
Manager
Provision for the council’s contribution for the RSAP accommodation is included
within the approved capital programme following internal financial modelling based
on 40 years borrowing with the rents covering the cost of borrowing, management
and maintenance costs and life cycle costs from year 6. The modelling assumes cost
and revenue increases in line with CPI.
The delivery of affordable accommodation under the councils’ affordable homes
programme will also be subject to its business case being approved by Derive RP.
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Corporate Procurement Team
– Debbie Derbyshire
The procurement of the project was undertaken by utilising the ICN Framework
which is a compliant route to market. The framework complies with the Procurement
Contract Regulations and therefore is also compliant with the Contractual Standing
Orders.

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 67

HR IMPLICATIONS: N/A

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:
These implications are addressed in other reports and processes.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
Place, People and Service Reform have all been engaged
CONTACT OFFICER: Konrad Magdzinski – Principal Officer Development
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 793 2197
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):
Weaste & Seedley
Walkden North

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 68

Agenda Item 8a
PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972
Name of Report: …0-19 ICHS Contract Options for procurement of the 0-19 Integrated
Childrens Health Service V4
Committee: ………Procurement Board
Date: ………………11th May 2022
Category of exemption applied (from list below): ………3……………………

1
2
3
4

5
6

Information relating to any individual
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of any individual
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular
person (including the Authority holding that information)
Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter
arising between the Council, or a Government minister, and any employees
of, or office holders under, the Council.
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could
be maintained in legal proceedings.
Information which reveals that the Council proposes:
a) give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which
requirements are imposed on a person (including an organisation) or

7

b) to make an order or direction under any enactment
Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.

Standards Committee Only
7a Information which is subject to any obligation of confidentiality
7b Information which relates in any way to matters concerning national security
7c The deliberations of a standards committee or of sub-committee of a
standards committee established under the Provisions of part III of the Local
government Act 2000 in reaching any finding on any matter referred under
the provisions of section 64(2) of 71(2) of the Local Government Act 2000

Page 69

Public Interest Test Questionnaire
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality.
FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public
debate about current issues?

No

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken
certain decisions?

Yes

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff?

No

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money
for council taxpayers?

No

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?

Yes

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)

No

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decisionmaking or examples of malpractice?

No

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact
occurred?

No

Page 70

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the
public any useful information?

No

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests,
without giving the public any useful information?

Yes

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a
situation?

No

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the
public useful information?

No

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals
at risk?

No

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would
benefit more from information being withheld?

No

Page 71

Justification of decision
(Please provide details of reasoning)

The report contains commercially sensitive financial information in relation to this
contract. Commissioners request that this information is protected until an open
tender process takes place, pending the final decision of the procurement board.

Other documents attached? ………………Yes……………
Name of Author: ………Steven Gavin……………………
Title: ………………………Public Health Strategic Manager……
Date:

………………………11th May 2022……

Page 72

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

